

# MINUTES of OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (MEETING AS THE CRIME AND DISORDER COMMITTEE) 14 MARCH 2018

# **PRESENT**

Chairman Councillor M W Helm

Councillors P G L Elliott, N R Pudney, S J Savage and

Mrs M E Thompson

Substitute Member Councillor R G Boyce MBE

# 898. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the back of the agenda.

# 899. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

## **RESOLVED**

(i) that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 November 2017 be received.

# Minute No. 571 – Chief Inspectors Performance Report

It was clarified that third bullet relating to 'Solved Rates' contained a typographical error and should state "...it was well *above* the national average".

# **RESOLVED**

(ii) that subject to the above amendment the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 8 November 2017 be confirmed.

## 900. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION NOTICE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs P A Channer, CC and R P F Dewick. In accordance with notice duly given, it was noted that Councillor R G Boyce was attending as a substitute for Councillor Mrs Channer.

## 901. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

There were none.

### 902. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was none.

### 903. CHIEF INSPECTOR'S PERFORMANCE REPORT

Chief Inspector (CI) Ronnie Egan, District Commander addressed the Committee and provided Members with a detailed update and highlighted the following areas reporting on the close work between the Police and its partners:

- <u>Current crime</u> It was noted although there had been an increase in recordable crime for the District it was still one of the lowest levels in Essex.
- <u>Sexual Offences</u> The change in figures reflected the national rise in this area and CI Egan outlined the main areas which had seen increases and commented on the number of historical incidents reported and their link to an increase in media report.
- <u>Racially aggravated incidents</u> had again seen an increase and CI Egan commented on the perceived increase in confidence to report incidents.
- <u>Solved rates</u> had decreased by 2% and Members were informed of the ongoing work to identify the reasons for this change, although it was noted that some related to an increase in the number of crimes being recorded. CI Egan informed the Committee that for the Maldon District over 25% of crimes were desk related and she explained how the investigation of these impacted on solve rates. This was an area for improvement for the Police.
- <u>Anti-Social Behaviour</u> The Police were working with Community Protection Officers on number of schemes across the District to address anti-social behaviour issues. CI Egan provided a brief outline of these.
- <u>Urban Street Gangs / Organised Crime Groups</u> Members were informed of the work undertaken as part of Operations Raptor (focusing on tackling key gangs and areas of concern), Scorpion (focusing on organised crime groups) and Swift (tackling the supply of drugs in and around Promenade Park). It was noted that information from residents was key to identify and map activity. Members were also informed about 4pPlans which worked with partners to tackle organised crime.
- <u>Vulnerability</u> It was noted that a Hidden Harms Team had been established for the north of the county to support a number of issues and how work to engage with victims was ongoing. CI Egan reported that the Police had a dedicated officer dealing with child sexual exploitation cases. In a recent change Standard and medium risk hate crime were now being investigated by Community Policing Teams.
- <u>Community Policing</u> CI Egan reported on the ongoing tasking of work to ensure focussed action against existing and emerging threats.

The results from a recent Public participation survey would form a key area to developing engagement work. CI Egan provided should of the results of the survey and advised that she was happy to share these with Members. Work was ongoing across all levels to better engage and provide confidence to the public.

Support from the Special Constabulary had increased across the District and Members were advised of the benefits of this including the number of hours completed in January 2018. A Parish Special scheme was being promoted alongside rural community builder workshops. It was noted that that volunteer section was a valued and key element to Police work.

In response to a number of questions raised by Members they were provided with the following additional information:

- CI Egan agreed to provide details of the percentage of racially / sexually aggravated incidents not progressed following initial investigation. Members were advised that this was an area where the Police were looking to improve the services to victims. It was reiterated that incidents report were taken very seriously.
- <u>Gun crime</u> Members were advised that there were no such incidents in Essex relating to gun crime in schools.
- Knife crime CI Egan reported on the work being done with schools and the
  regular campaigns (Operation Sceptre) to raise awareness of the danger of
  carrying knives. The Committee were informed of the continuing education,
  awareness and enforcement (including the Crime Prosecution Service) work
  including partnership working with Trading Standards, retail outlets and
  charities.
- In response to a suggestion regarding using flyers / leaflets to promote Police work, CI Egan outlined some media campaigns by the Police to inform the public. They were happy to work with the Council to identify ways to further increase public awareness.

In response to a question regarding including a leaflet with annual Council Tax bills, Director of Customers and Community advised that unfortunately the billing had been completed.

The Chairman thanked CI Egan for attending the meeting.

Councillor H M Bass joined the meeting during this item of business.

### 904. MALDON DISTRICT COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP UPDATE

The Committee received the report of the Director of Customers and Community detailing progress of activities undertaken by the Maldon Community Safety Partnership since the last meeting of this Committee and highlighting the strategic priorities being proposed for 2018 / 19.

It was noted that five key priorities had been identified and were set out in the report. Members' particular attention was drawn to the priority 'tackling rural crime and strengthening communities' which was applicable to the Maldon District in light of the crime trends seen in the past few years.

The most recent Essex Police performance summary (to January 2018) was attached as Appendix 1 to the report.

The Community Safety Partnership Manager presented the report and provided Members with update on a number of areas relating to the Partnership set out in the report. In addition to the report the following information was provided:

- <u>Council Tax</u> The Policing precept for Council Tax in 2018 / 19 had increased. Members were informed that this was explained in a leaflet included with the annual bill sent out by the Council. It was advised that an element of this will go towards community policing and a report on this matter would be brought to a future meeting of the Community Services Committee.
- Working with youths It was noted that Essex Police were continuing to work closely with schools, and continue to measure the impact of early interaction with young people. Members were informed of ongoing work with St Giles Trust to highlight the risk of involvement with gangs or organised crime groups. Educational work to raise awareness had been well received and had also been carried out with teachers, professionals, and parents.
- <u>CCTV</u> CCTV systems at Maldon High Street, Maldon Promenade, Burnhamon-Crouch and community centres at Brickhouse Farm and West Maldon were being renewed this summer and a pilot for these cameras to be remotely monitored in Chelmsford had been funded by the Community Safety Partnership.
- <u>Street Pastors</u> Members were informed that Essex Police had started working
  with Maldon Churches. At present there were six churches interested in
  providing street pastors, focusing on working with young people around the
  High Street and the Prom. It was noted that the possibility of School Pastors
  was also being considered.

In response to a number of questions raised by Members they were provided with the following additional information:

- Officers outlined ongoing Police work and its links with Churches within the Maldon District and advised that if any churches were interested in working with them they would welcome this. This also applied in respect of schools.
- <u>CCTV</u> The Director of Customers and Community advised that CCTV systems initially put in were for Maldon District Council sites and to monitor antisocial behaviour within the town. In response to a question regarding CCTV in Burnham-on-Crouch replicating a similar system to that in Maldon, Officers advised that would continue to work with local Partners to identify future needs and action these accordingly.

### 905. ESSEX POLICE RURAL CRIME STRATEGY

The Chairman introduced Chief Inspector (CI) Ian Gennery of the Gypsy, Traveller and Rural Engagement Team (GTRET). CI Gennery gave an overview of the Essex Police Rural Crime Strategy and drew a number of key areas to Members' attention, including.

• <u>Definition of Rural Crime</u> - Members were advised that there was no national definition of rural crime, however in Essex this was defined as any crime which occurs within a rural location.

- <u>Rural Affairs National Strategy 2018 2021</u> It was noted that the National Police Chief had finalised the development of a national strategy for providing a safer rural community. This is expected to be launched in July 2018.
- Essex Police Rural Crime Strategy As part of the 2017 refresh of this
  document work had been undertaken with key partners to inform the way in
  which the Police tackled crime and Anti-social behaviour in the rural
  environment. A copy of the Strategy was circulated to all present at the meeting.
  It included an updated vision and aims for improved policing within rural areas.
- Working strategies Mention was made at this point to ongoing operations including hare coursing and caravan thefts. In respect of caravan thefts the Committee noted the success of a text alert system by the public to identify crime. By way of an example of ongoing operations, Members were advised of Operation Buzzard which brought together traditional police work and the use of technology such as drones to combat crime.
- <u>Key Areas</u> Particular attention was drawn to the Community Safety Accreditation Scheme to which Maldon District Council was a key partner and had been accredited for 10 years.

A copy of the information provided is attached at **APPENDIX 1** to these Minutes. CI Gennery welcomed Members' comments on the Strategy and how the Police and the Council could work together to continue improving the rural crime within the District.

In response to a question, CI Gennery commented on the recent Automated Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) installations in the District and provided Members with examples of successful operations involving these cameras. Members were reminded to report any suspicious activity to the Police.

It was noted that the Police actively campaigned in respect of rural crime and CI Gennery made specific reference to the strong farmer's network in the District.

The Director of Customers and Community advised that Council had been asked to comment Police expenditure and additional resources. The Council had responded in support of the Rural Crime Team and commented that there should be an increase in the availability of ANPR cameras in Police vehicles.

The Chairman informed the Committee that CI Egan would shortly be moving into a new position within the Police and CI Gerry Parker would be taking over. On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman thanked CI Egan for all her work and assistance and wished her every success for the future.

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.50 pm.

M W HELM CHAIRMAN